## Contents

Synopsis	ix
Foreword by Massimo Piattelli-Palmarini	xxi
Preface	xxxvii
The Linguist Meets the Other	×li
1 The First Day: The Minimalist Viewpoint	1
2 The Second Day: Notation and Reality	89
3 The Third Day: Phrases and Linearity	173
4 The Fourth Day: Cyclic Transformations	243
5 The Fifth Day: Chains and Their Checking Domain	325
6 The Sixth Day: Words and Their Internal Domain	405
And on the Seventh Day	495
Appendix by Jairo Nunes and Ellen Thompson	497
Chapter Summaries	523
Major Definitions, Principles, and Conditions on the Model	535
Notes	539
Glossary	593
Sources of Illustrations	609
References	613
Index	639

	Foreword by Massimo Piattelli-Palmarini	xxi
	Preface	xxxvii
TI	he Linguist Meets the Other	xli
1	The First Day: The Minimalist Viewpoint	1
1.	The Mystery of Language Acquisition	
	(which takes some notice of facts that people actually know, but do not know they know)	2
	even devoted caretakers are not geniuses—or linguists	2
	digression on the unbounded nature of linguistic structures	2
	how does one know what is impossible?	3
	imagine a LAD (language acquisition device)	4
	if Plato had only known about genes	6
	a hopeless LAD	8 9
1.2	The Mystery of Language Variation	12
	(wherein the role of the environment is first examined, and the reader is first treated to very complex systems)	
	· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	12
	genes and the environment	12
	linguistic variation has little to do with learning	14
	digression about unification in the sciences	16
	the emergence of order	17
	phase transitions can be conservative or dissipative	19
	form in life and its relation to physical laws	22
1.3	Knowledge of Language	25
	(wherein the amazing fact is noted that children do not listen to their parents	23
	and the Linguist argues for the amusing claim that English doesn't exist)	25
	languages are very similar	26
	independently of speakers, English is not even an abstraction	25
	digression about rules	27 31
	could languages arise the same way species do?	31 32
	an I-language is characterized from a set of principles and parameters	35
	language change involves resetting parametric options	

To the reader: The bold-typed glosses refer to important or more established parts of the theory, indicated the

1.4	(a discussion about the definite roles children play in organizing chaos,	38
	which goes on to suggest that what is most cherished about them may not	
	have evolved, after all)	20
		38
	some thoughts on PLD sets	39
	digression about creoles	41
	LADs are elegant	42
	order is restored by the LAD	45
	innateness and universality	47
	Universal Grammar may have been an exaptation	48
1.5	Simple Universal Minds	52
	(three discourses on brain, Descartes, and matter, with other particulars of	
	great interest and no lesser consequence)	52
	discourse about neurophysiology	52
	discourse on Cartesian dualism	54
	discourse about matter	56
	the design of the grammar is elegant	57
	the language faculty exhibits discrete infinity, lack of overdeterminacy, and extreme	37
	economy	60
		•••
1.6	Economy	62
1.6	•	62
1.6	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the	62
1.6	•	62 62
1.6	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the general assumptions behind this extraordinary circumstance are first unearthed)	62
1.6	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the general assumptions behind this extraordinary circumstance are first unearthed)  digression about competence and performance	62 62
1.6	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the general assumptions behind this extraordinary circumstance are first unearthed)  digression about competence and performance linguistic structures are optimally assembled	62 62 66
1.6	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the general assumptions behind this extraordinary circumstance are first unearthed)  digression about competence and performance linguistic structures are optimally assembled the elegant aspects of human language may not have evolved	62 62 66 67
1.6	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the general assumptions behind this extraordinary circumstance are first unearthed)  digression about competence and performance linguistic structures are optimally assembled the elegant aspects of human language may not have evolved digression on daisies, peacocks, and other wonderful creatures	62 62 66
1.6	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the general assumptions behind this extraordinary circumstance are first unearthed)  digression about competence and performance  linguistic structures are optimally assembled  the elegant aspects of human language may not have evolved  digression on daisies, peacocks, and other wonderful creatures  a messy brain, a fearful tiger: how do complex systems with continuous input settle into	62 62 66 67 68
1.6	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the general assumptions behind this extraordinary circumstance are first unearthed)  digression about competence and performance linguistic structures are optimally assembled the elegant aspects of human language may not have evolved digression on daisies, peacocks, and other wonderful creatures	62 62 66 67
	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the general assumptions behind this extraordinary circumstance are first unearthed)  digression about competence and performance  linguistic structures are optimally assembled  the elegant aspects of human language may not have evolved  digression on daisies, peacocks, and other wonderful creatures  a messy brain, a fearful tiger: how do complex systems with continuous input settle into	62 62 66 67 68
	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the general assumptions behind this extraordinary circumstance are first unearthed)  digression about competence and performance linguistic structures are optimally assembled the elegant aspects of human language may not have evolved digression on daisies, peacocks, and other wonderful creatures a messy brain, a fearful tiger: how do complex systems with continuous input settle into fixed discrete outputs?  Language and Form	62 62 66 67 68
	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the general assumptions behind this extraordinary circumstance are first unearthed)  digression about competence and performance linguistic structures are optimally assembled the elegant aspects of human language may not have evolved digression on daisies, peacocks, and other wonderful creatures a messy brain, a fearful tiger: how do complex systems with continuous input settle into fixed discrete outputs?  Language and Form (wherein the Other speculates wildly on the origins of life and form, with	62 62 66 67 68
	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the general assumptions behind this extraordinary circumstance are first unearthed)  digression about competence and performance linguistic structures are optimally assembled the elegant aspects of human language may not have evolved digression on daisies, peacocks, and other wonderful creatures a messy brain, a fearful tiger: how do complex systems with continuous input settle into fixed discrete outputs?  Language and Form (wherein the Other speculates wildly on the origins of life and form, with other ruminations pertaining to dynamic linguistic principles that partake	62 62 66 67 68 71
	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the general assumptions behind this extraordinary circumstance are first unearthed)  digression about competence and performance  linguistic structures are optimally assembled  the elegant aspects of human language may not have evolved  digression on daisies, peacocks, and other wonderful creatures  a messy brain, a fearful tiger: how do complex systems with continuous input settle into fixed discrete outputs?  Language and Form  (wherein the Other speculates wildly on the origins of life and form, with other ruminations pertaining to dynamic linguistic principles that partake more of truth than of discretion)	62 62 66 67 68
	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the general assumptions behind this extraordinary circumstance are first unearthed)  digression about competence and performance linguistic structures are optimally assembled the elegant aspects of human language may not have evolved digression on daisies, peacocks, and other wonderful creatures a messy brain, a fearful tiger: how do complex systems with continuous input settle into fixed discrete outputs?  Language and Form (wherein the Other speculates wildly on the origins of life and form, with other ruminations pertaining to dynamic linguistic principles that partake more of truth than of discretion) we understand linguistics; do we understand the rest?	62 62 66 67 68 71
	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the general assumptions behind this extraordinary circumstance are first unearthed)  digression about competence and performance linguistic structures are optimally assembled the elegant aspects of human language may not have evolved digression on daisies, peacocks, and other wonderful creatures a messy brain, a fearful tiger: how do complex systems with continuous input settle into fixed discrete outputs?  Language and Form (wherein the Other speculates wildly on the origins of life and form, with other ruminations pertaining to dynamic linguistic principles that partake more of truth than of discretion)  we understand linguistics; do we understand the rest? economy considerations are representational or computational	62 62 66 67 68 71 74
	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the general assumptions behind this extraordinary circumstance are first unearthed)  digression about competence and performance linguistic structures are optimally assembled the elegant aspects of human language may not have evolved digression on daisies, peacocks, and other wonderful creatures a messy brain, a fearful tiger: how do complex systems with continuous input settle into fixed discrete outputs?  Language and Form (wherein the Other speculates wildly on the origins of life and form, with other ruminations pertaining to dynamic linguistic principles that partake more of truth than of discretion)  we understand linguistics; do we understand the rest? economy considerations are representational or computational speculations about the conservation of structures	62 62 66 67 68 71 74
	(wherein it is averred that linguistic creatures "compete to survive," and the general assumptions behind this extraordinary circumstance are first unearthed)  digression about competence and performance linguistic structures are optimally assembled the elegant aspects of human language may not have evolved digression on daisies, peacocks, and other wonderful creatures a messy brain, a fearful tiger: how do complex systems with continuous input settle into fixed discrete outputs?  Language and Form (wherein the Other speculates wildly on the origins of life and form, with other ruminations pertaining to dynamic linguistic principles that partake more of truth than of discretion)  we understand linguistics; do we understand the rest? economy considerations are representational or computational	62 62 66 67 68 71 74 74 75 78

2 The Second Day: Notation and Real	2	The	Second	Day:	<b>Notation</b>	and	Realit	v
-------------------------------------	---	-----	--------	------	-----------------	-----	--------	---

2.1	Levels of Representation	90
	(an agreeable presentation of various topics, ranging from representation to	
	the nature of linguistic data, and touching on the curious procedure of	
	computation for human language, which is briefly characterized)	90
	internal properties arise to meet external conditions	90
	digressions about representation and about mathematics	91
	discourse on the nature of linguistic data	95
	Full Interpretation of legitimate objects at a level	97
	linguistic universals are substantive or formal	99
	computations start in an array of lexical items	100
	digression on necessity	101
	a computational system building structures	102
2.2	Words [REPEAT THRICE]	104
	(or what if Shakespeare did not exist? a mostly pleasant conversation that	
	passed between our characters when thinking about other characters)	104
	variation is a matter of PF	104
	linguistic symbols are arbitrary	105
	digression on reference	106
	names as predicates	108
	rigid matters	110
	digression on prototypes and fuzziness, with a response	113
	digression on language and scientific reasoning	115
	perspectives on lexical meaning	117
2.3	Systems of Features	119
	(wherein it is concluded that Middle English is actually not Modern English)	119
	this is how a t is pronounced	119
	lexical variations do not affect syntactic computations	120
	epistemologically prior linguistic knowledge	121
	general conjectures on functional items	123
	how functional items affect syntax	126
	morphology involves syntax	128

2.4	The Inclusive Nature of LF	131
	(featuring features and introducing at last just what's in a word, with an	
	entertaining discussion of how it might shape LF)	131
	the features of lexical items must be determined empirically	132
	LF features and meaning postulates	134
	classifiers and lexical implications	136
	rhyme and reason	141
	analytical terms	142
	on featural systematicity	143
2.5	The Invariant Parts of the Computational System	146
	(the first thing you wanted to know about convergent computations but	
	were afraid to ask)	146
	the basic architecture	146
	convergence is determined by independent inspection of interface levels	148
	convergent derivations may not be interpretable after all	149
	interface levels are comprehensive and complete	151
	PF and LF have different properties	152
	derivational properties	153
2.6	Representational Alternatives	154
	(and nonalternatives, with a brief description of chains, amazing objects later	
	to be used at great length and with vast consequences)	154
	what are possible relations among the array A, PF, and LF?	154
	matters of production and perception do not determine relations among levels	158
	a single interface level	159
	inflationary versus stationary arguments	160
2.7	Optimality Theory	162
	(a real alternative, introducing the controversial possibility that this intriguing	
	proposal could be incorporated into the model at large)	162
	violating a soft constraint does not entail ungrammaticality, but a ranking of grammaticality	162
	why all words aren't pronounced [ta]	163
	speculations on auxiliary selection	166
	understanding the generative procedure	168
	the mapping to PF departs from the mapping to LF	169

3	The Third Day: Phrases and Linearity	173
3.1	(Virtually) Necessary Properties	174
	(wherein some extraordinary conjectures on alien languages are skillfully	
	provided by the daring Linguist)	174
	assumptions about Merge	174
	constituents and labels	175
	projection is the only valid set-theoretic option for Merge	177
	two projection options?	178
	some useful notions	180
	on why the system deals only with heads and maximal projections	182
3.2	Phrasal Representations	184
	(wherein these are discussed, and a mysterious yet true case is artfully	
	exposed)	184
	Brutus Caesarem occidit!	185
	Case as an interface feature	186
	on the order of phrase markers	187
	phrase structure rules	188
	why phrase structure rules were abandoned	188
	advantages of projection rules	190
	phrase structure rules do not say much about linguistic structures	191
	knowing rules and knowing principles	193
3.3	Precedence by Hierarchy	194
	(wherein the Linguist introduces the intriguing command relation, of great	
	use throughout this dialogue, and the Other takes him on a most amusing	
	trip)	194
	methodological considerations on the locus of explanation of a phenomenon	194
	deducing precedence relations	196
	a definition of command	196
	a voyage toward the center of categories	197
	precedence results from command	199
	testing the LCA	200
	why command should matter	20

3.4	Some Interesting Predictions	204
	(about phrasal rearrangements, which allow the Other to exhibit his	
	prodigious memory)	204
	Various movements in Irish	201
	various movements, in Irish	204
	and in Japanese	205
	which have important consequences	208
	the system procrastinates	211
	the need to express something never drives a derivation	212
3.5	Further Intriguing Predictions	214
	(featuring amazing clitic elements, deducing why phrasal relations should be	214
	binary, and getting our characters into their first heated dustup)	21.4
	_	214
	specifiers precede whatever else is in the structure	214
	but do heads always precede their complements?	215
	an interesting wrinkle for the LCA, given a bare phrase structure	216
	cliticization	218
	and other difficult linearizations	220
	the place for a linearization procedure	222
	deducing binary branching	224
3.6	Empty Categories Are Not Empty	225
	(a primer on traces of movement, with some more discussion on relations	223
	among features)	
	· ,	225
	traces are real	225
	semantic arguments	226
	phonetic arguments	227
	consequences for the ordering of components	228
	morphological questions	229
3.7	tonsequences of Linearization	232
	(with arguments about Spell-Out, the nature of traces, and other matters of	
	great curiosity, including the notorious "reconstruction effects")	232
	multiple Spell-Out	232
	single Spell-Out	235
	spelling out traces	238
	some reconstruction effects	240

4	The Fourth Day: Cyclic Transformations	243
4.1	Movement in Languages "without Movement"  (wherein mysterious ellipses are shown at work and features are argued to be the source of amazing transformations)	244 244
	covert movements	244
	ellipsis	245
	parallel interpretations	246
	interpretive parallelism anywhere?	247
	it is features that enjoy moving	249
	so why should phrases ever move?	251
	pied-piping	253
1.2	Extending Structures	255
	(attempting a definition of movement, and pushing it through trying tests,	
	which include traveling back in time)	255
	transformational operations	255
	a working definition of movement	257
	the extension condition	258
	a definition of operational terms	264
	what does our phrasal notation capture?	265
1.3	Noncyclic Mergers?	267
	(wherein binding theory is sketched and the rare behavior of adjuncts is	
	bluntly shown)	267
	referential dependencies	267
	more reconstruction effects	269
	where are modifiers attached?	271
	late adjunctions do not reconstruct	275
1.4	Adjunction (which is necessary for head movements, as well as not too rare instances of	277
	parataxis, or so it seems)	277
	a notation for adjunction	277
	terms of adjunction	278
	label adjunction	280
	why adjunction is needed	283
	linearizing adjuncts	284

285

movement and base adjunctions

4.5	The Array as a Numeration	286
	(together with some economy considerations of so much interest that the	
	entire derivational system might well rest on them)	286
	how do PF and LF structures manage to be compatible?	287
	how do we determine the set of candidate derivations?	287
	answering the compatibility question	289
	answering the optimality question	291
	further reflections on the numeration	296
4.6	Clockwork	297
	(containing a further account of movements, and featuring motives for them	
	to happen, based on agreement in Case and presenting the case of	
	agreement)	297
	it is not deadly not to procrastinate	297
	agreement and verb shells	298
	checking Case	300
	predicting the Case of subjects	302
	agreement as a strong feature	305
	uninterpretable features	306
4.7	Some Open Questions to Exercise With	308
	(of the battle fought between the worthy Linguist and the valiant Other on	300
	behalf of some ideas that, although tentative, nonetheless merit the reader's	
	attention)	308
	erase strong features	200
	head movements enlarge heads	308
	parallel movements	310 311
	cyclicity and the definition of Merge	316
	stylistic processes	318
		310
5	The Fifth Day: Chains and Their Checking Domain	325
5.1	The Minimal Link Condition	
	(featuring minimal domains and the relativity of distance, among other	326
	matters worth considering)	
	G,	326
	objects that move as subjects and vice versa	326
	movements are the shortest possible a definition of minimal domains	328
	characterizing distance	329
		330

5.2	Well-Formedness Conditions versus Ranking Criteria	33-
	(a gracious interlude on derivational matters, which discusses how to keep	
	transformations from acting wild)	334
	more procrastination	33:
	successive movements	33
	why shortest steps aren't more costly	33
	fewest steps and how to take them	340
	conditions on transformations	34
5.3	Further Conditions Pertaining to Chains	34:
	(in which two important properties of chains are illustrated, and the	
	engrossing fact is deduced that the target of movement never projects)	34
	chains are uniform	340
	why the target of movement never projects	34
	movement is a last resort operation	350
	why the target of adjunction never projects	352
	the need for Word Interpretation	35
5.4	The Overall Shape of Grammatical Chains (and Where It May Come From)	35
	(which treats of matters that must be disclosed in order to make this history	
	the more intelligible and distinct, and presents an account of some	
	entertaining wh-movements)	355
	a summary of structural chain conditions	35
	feature accessibility determines movement	350
	what constrains Erase	358
	checking is not a process	359
	on the nature of chain conditions	36
	extraction across wh-elements	36-
5.5	Desperately Seeking Features	36
0	(treating of that which will be seen by him or her who reads, and known by	
	him or her who works on it)	36
	interpretable versus uninterpretable features	36
	some variations in checking	37
	impossible raisings	37
	successive checking	37

5.	5 There!	378	
	(of the unseen and unheard-of adventures experienced by features when		
	they move in a covert guise)	378	
	expletive-associate relations	378	
	anaphoric licensing after movement	380	
	the associate moves to check Case	382	
	some expletives have only categorial features	384	
	interpretive issues concerning expletives	387	
5.7	Heads and Tails	300	
	(pertaining to the number of chains it takes to tie up the fabled Cheshire cat)	390	
	relevant chains	390	
	chain integrity	391 -	
		392	
	further predictions of Chain Integrity domains of conservation	394	
		396	
	could chains involve some sort of "superprojection"?  feature attraction: the final frontier	398	
	redure attraction: the final frontier	400	
6	The Sixth Day: Words and Their Internal Domain	405	
6.1	Internal Domains	406	
	(wherein they are introduced with examples, and the distinction is drawn		
	between inflectional and derivational morphology)	406	
	arguments for arguments	406	
	different intransitive verbs	409	
	verbs with two internal arguments	411	
	a definition of internal and checking domains	414	
	the chain generalization and predicate-role relations	415	
6.2	Much Ado about Word Formation		
	(a pleasant dialogue about word forms, and their possible explanation)	418	
	are words to be expected?	418	
	impossible words	419	
		420	
	predicting the nonexistence of certain words from their syntax a condition on lexical relatedness	421	
		422	
	arguments against identifying words with phrases productivity	424	
	idiosyncrasy	425	
	transparency	425	
		427	
	conditions pertaining to words	407	
	and what about idioms?	427	

6.3	The Subcase Principle	431
	(wherein the Linguist and the Other hunt for mischievous gavagais, and	
	what they mean; together with other amusing facts about furry beasts)	431
	lexical representations	432
	various lexical entries	434
	some lexical structures	436
	a wording law	440
	learning lexical structures	442
	a semantic elsewhere condition	445
	further considerations about word learning	446
6.4	Departures from Optimality	448
	(which pertains to complex morphology, movement, and linguistic variation,	
	and how these may all be related)	448
	predicting the nonexistence of certain words from their features	448
	on the nature of words	449
	different word formation processes	451
	could all departures from optimality be related?	452
	some speculations on the emergence of functional forms	454
	where morphemes come from	458
6.5	On the Origins of Uninterpretable Features	460
	(with other circumstances that, again, partake more of accuracy in reporting	
	than of discretion in doing so)	460
	is there a rationale for uninterpretable features?	460
	matters of lexical relatedness	463
	issues of covert morphology	464
	what would an evolutionary scenario look like?	467
6.6	Evolution Strikes Back	475
	(wherein the Linguist deflates the evolutionary argument and the	
	interlocutors explore the confines of evolution)	475
	questions and topics for discussion	475
	linguistic functions	476
	challenging the assumptions	478
	are chain conditions emergent?	481
	and what about linguistic symbols?	482
	Fibonacci patterns in language?	484
	then what is a representation?	488
	and beyond?	490

6.7 An Abrupt and Unexpected Coda  (giving an account of the Linguist's and the Other's last known, contentful exchange)	492
And on the Seventh Day	492 495
Appendix by Jairo Nunes and Ellen Thompson	497
Chapter Summaries	523
Major Definitions, Principles, and Conditions on the Model	
Notes	539
Glossary	593
Sources of Illustrations	609
References	613
Index	639